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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements that involve substantial risks and uncertainties. All statements other 
than statements of historical facts contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including statements relating to our financial condition, results of 
operations, plans, objectives, future performance and business, are forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements 
because they contain words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “could,” “intends,” “target,” “projects,” “contemplates,” 
“believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “would,” “potential,” “likely,” or “continue” or the negative of these terms or other similar expressions. Forward-
looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may include, but not be limited to, statements about:

• our recent history of losses and our ability to continue as a going concern; 

• our ability to meet our publicly announced guidance or other expectations about our business; 

• our future financial performance, including our revenue, costs of revenue, and operating expenses;

• our ability to achieve and grow profitability;

• our ability to expand our operations and increase capacity;

• our anticipated uses of cash in the short and long terms and the sufficiency of our sources of liquidity;

• our ability to defend against claims and mitigate adverse results from any legal proceedings against us and the merits of any claims or 
suits against us;

• our ability to limit our accounts receivable and credit risk exposure;

• our future investments, if any, in additional facilities to facilitate our expected growth;

• our future uses of capital to purse potential acquisitions, if any, that further or accelerate our strategy;

• our future use of equity or debt financings to execute our business strategy;

• our ability to take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements generally applicable to public companies;

• our expectations regarding the period during which we qualify as an emerging growth company under the Jumpstart Our Business 
Startups Act of 2012 (the JOBS Act); 

• the impact of recent accounting pronouncements on our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows;

• any failure to maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting or fully remediate any weaknesses in our internal controls that 
may arise or be identified in the future;

• the impact of changes to our internal control over financial reporting, other than changes intended to remediate material weaknesses;

• the impact of any pandemic, epidemic, or outbreak of infectious disease (including COVID-19), natural disasters, geopolitical unrest, war 
(including in Ukraine or the Middle East), terrorism, public health issues or other catastrophic events may have on our business and our 
ability to actively manage our response to these types of events;

• our future adoption of critical accounting policies and estimates;

• our ability to increase the scale and capacity of, or otherwise effectively adjust, our manufacturing processes and systems in response to 
market demands;

• the impact of increased competition from additional companies entering the market and the availability of more advanced technologies in 
the market;

• the impact of global economic conditions on us and our customers; 

• our ability to hire and retain key personnel; 

• our ability to obtain capital on favorable terms, or at all;

• our ability to generate future revenue growth in market segments such as cell and gene therapy, liquid biopsy, and synthetic biology;

• the impact of inflation and increased costs on our operations, including materials, labor, and rising interest rates;
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• our ability to use cash on hand to meet current and future financial obligations, including funding our operations, debt service 
requirements, and capital expenditures;

• the enforceability of our exclusive forum provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation;

• our customers’ sensitivity to product nonconformances, defects, and errors; 

• the availability of exemption of our products from the requirements of the U.S. Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (FDCA);

• our ability to secure and maintain a stable supply of raw materials in the future;

• our ability to maintain a corporate culture that contributes to our success;

• the marketability of our products across a wide range of markets and the probability of success or market opportunity in our target 
markets;

• regulatory developments in the United States and other countries;

• the impact of revenue recognition rules and other factors on our financial results;

• our ability to obtain, maintain, and enforce intellectual property protection for our current and future products, including our ability to 
protect our trade secrets, trademarks, and trade names; and

• the ongoing expenses associated with being a public company.
 

We caution you that the foregoing list may not contain all the forward-looking statements made in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
 
We have based the forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q primarily on our current expectations and 

projections about future events and trends that we believe may affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects, business strategy, 
and financial needs. The outcome of the events described in these forward-looking statements is subject to risks, uncertainties, assumptions, and other 
factors described in the section titled “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 27, 2024 (the 
2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K) and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. These risks are not exhaustive. Other sections of this Quarterly 
Report on Form 10-Q include additional factors that could adversely impact our business and financial performance. Furthermore, new risks and 
uncertainties emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict all risks and uncertainties that could have an impact on the forward-looking 
statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. We cannot assure you that the results, events, and circumstances reflected in the forward-
looking statements will be achieved or occur, and actual results, events, or circumstances could differ materially from those described in the forward-
looking statements. 

 
In addition, statements that “we believe” and similar statements reflect our beliefs and opinions on the relevant subject. These statements are 

based upon information available to us as of the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and while we believe such information forms a reasonable 
basis for such statements, such information may be limited or incomplete, and our statements should not be read to indicate that we have conducted an 
exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all potentially available relevant information. These statements are inherently uncertain and investors are cautioned 
not to unduly rely upon these statements.

 
The forward-looking statements made in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q relate only to events as of the date on which such statements are 

made. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or to conform such 
statements to actual results or revised expectations, except as required by law.

 
Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “Teknova,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q refer 

to Alpha Teknova, Inc.
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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Condensed Financial Statements
 

ALPHA TEKNOVA, INC.
Condensed Statements of Operations

(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

 

   
For the Three Months Ended September 

30,    
For the Nine Months Ended September 

30,  
    2024     2023     2024     2023  

Revenue   $ 9,576     $ 8,169     $ 28,480     $ 28,817  
Cost of sales     9,486       6,697       23,377       19,856  
Gross profit     90       1,472       5,103       8,961  
Operating expenses:                        

Research and development     627       1,397       2,165       4,256  
Sales and marketing     1,640       2,412       4,763       6,929  
General and administrative     4,968       6,138       17,832       19,426  
Amortization of intangible assets     287       287       861       860  
Long-lived assets impairment     —       —       —       2,195  

Total operating expenses     7,522       10,234       25,621       33,666  
Loss from operations     (7,432 )     (8,762 )     (20,518 )     (24,705 )
Other expenses, net                        

Interest expense, net     (141 )     (791 )     (558 )     (1,006 )
Loss on extinguishment of debt     —       (824 )     —       (824 )
Other income, net     —       233       —       417  

Total other expenses, net     (141 )     (1,382 )     (558 )     (1,413 )
Loss before income taxes     (7,573 )     (10,144 )     (21,076 )     (26,118 )

(Benefit from) provision for income taxes     (8 )     9       (50 )     6  

Net loss   $ (7,565 )   $ (10,153 )   $ (21,026 )   $ (26,124 )
Net loss per share—basic and diluted   $ (0.15 )   $ (0.34 )   $ (0.47 )   $ (0.91 )
Weighted average shares used in computing net loss per share—basic and 
diluted     51,821,395       29,956,930       44,520,132       28,810,068  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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ALPHA TEKNOVA, INC.
Condensed Balance Sheets

(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

 

   
As of 

September 30, 2024    
As of

December 31, 2023  
ASSETS            
Current assets:            

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 6,145     $ 28,484  
Short-term investments, held -to-maturity     25,546       —  
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses of $74 thousand and $20 thousand as of September 30, 
2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively     4,605       3,948  
Inventories, net     7,674       11,594  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets     1,960       1,634  

Total current assets     45,930       45,660  
Property, plant, and equipment, net     46,715       50,364  
Operating right-of-use lease assets     16,558       16,472  
Intangible assets, net     13,378       14,239  
Other non-current assets     1,518       1,852  

Total assets   $ 124,099     $ 128,587  

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY            
Current liabilities:            

Accounts payable   $ 975     $ 1,493  
Accrued liabilities     4,373       5,579  
Current portion of operating lease liabilities     1,843       1,803  
Current portion of long-term debt     2,528       —  

Total current liabilities     9,719       8,875  
Deferred tax liabilities     867       919  
Other accrued liabilities     30       102  
Long-term debt, net     10,857       13,251  
Long-term operating lease liabilities     15,358       15,404  

Total liabilities     36,831       38,551  
Stockholders’ equity:            

Preferred stock, $0.00001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 
2023, respectively, zero shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023     —       —  
Common stock, $0.00001 par value, 490,000,000 shares authorized at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 
2023, 53,302,993 and 40,793,848 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 
2023, respectively     1       —  
Additional paid-in capital     200,079       181,822  
Accumulated deficit     (112,812 )     (91,786 )

Total stockholders’ equity     87,268       90,036  

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 124,099     $ 128,587  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.



 

7

ALPHA TEKNOVA, INC.
Condensed Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

 (in thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

 

    Common Stock    
Additional

Paid-in     Accumulated     Stockholders’  
    Shares     Amount     Capital     Deficit     Equity  

Balance at July 1, 2024     40,915,331     $ —     $ 184,175     $ (105,247 )   $ 78,928  
Equity financing, net of issuance costs     12,385,883       1       15,140       —       15,141  
Stock-based compensation     —       —       760       —       760  
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options     1,779       —       4       —       4  
Net loss     —       —       —       (7,565 )     (7,565 )
Balance at September 30, 2024     53,302,993     $ 1     $ 200,079     $ (112,812 )   $ 87,268  

 

    Common Stock    
Additional

Paid-in     Accumulated     Stockholders’  
    Shares     Amount     Capital     Deficit     Equity  

Balance at July 1, 2023     28,341,302     $ —     $ 157,185     $ (70,977 )   $ 86,208  
Equity financing, net of issuance costs     12,386,478       —       22,562       —       22,562  
Stock-based compensation     —       —       1,035       —       1,035  
Net loss     —       —       —       (10,153 )     (10,153 )
Balance at September 30, 2023     40,727,780     $ —     $ 180,782     $ (81,130 )   $ 99,652  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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ALPHA TEKNOVA, INC.
Condensed Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

 (in thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

 
 

  Common Stock    
Additional

Paid-in     Accumulated     Stockholders’  
    Shares     Amount     Capital     Deficit     Equity  
Balance at January 1, 2024     40,793,848     $ —     $ 181,822     $ (91,786 )   $ 90,036  
Equity financing, net of issuance costs     12,385,883       1       15,140       —       15,141  
Issuance of common stock warrants     —       —       132       —       132  
Stock-based compensation     —       —       2,900       —       2,900  
Vesting of restricted stock units     67,169       —       —       —       —  
Issuance of common stock under employee stock purchase plan     54,314       —       81       —       81  
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options     1,779       —       4       —       4  
Net loss     —       —       —       (21,026 )     (21,026 )
Balance at September 30, 2024     53,302,993     $ 1     $ 200,079     $ (112,812 )   $ 87,268  

 
 

  Common Stock    
Additional

Paid-in     Accumulated     Stockholders’  
    Shares     Amount     Capital     Deficit     Equity  
Balance at January 1, 2023     28,179,423     $ —     $ 154,891     $ (55,006 )   $ 99,885  
Equity financing, net of issuance costs     12,386,478       —       22,562       —       22,562  
Stock-based compensation     —       —       3,115       —       3,115  
Vesting of restricted stock units     28,071       —       —       —       —  
Issuance of common stock under employee stock purchase plan     82,034       —       138       —       138  
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options     51,774       —       76       —       76  
Net loss     —       —       —       (26,124 )     (26,124 )
Balance at September 30, 2023     40,727,780     $ —     $ 180,782     $ (81,130 )   $ 99,652  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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ALPHA TEKNOVA, INC.
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
(in thousands)

 
    For the Nine Months Ended September 30,  
    2024     2023  

Operating activities:            
Net loss   $ (21,026 )   $ (26,124 )
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:            

Bad debt expense     61       21  
Inventory reserve     4,235       130  
Depreciation and amortization     4,933       4,049  
Stock-based compensation     2,900       3,115  
Deferred taxes     (52 )     5  
Accrued interest income on short-term investments     (118 )     —  
Amortization of debt financing costs     291       415  
Non-cash lease expense     140       86  
Loss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment     49       5  
Long-lived assets impairment     —       2,195  
Loss on extinguishment of debt     —       824  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:            

Accounts receivable     (718 )     (721 )
Inventories     (315 )     649  
Income taxes receivable     —       22  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets     (943 )     (694 )
Other non-current assets     334       300  
Accounts payable     (430 )     (948 )
Accrued liabilities     (724 )     815  
Other     (72 )     (66 )

Cash used in operating activities     (11,455 )     (15,922 )
Investing activities:            

Purchases of short-term investments     (25,428 )     —  
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment     125       —  
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment     (558 )     (7,622 )

Cash used in investing activities     (25,861 )     (7,622 )
Financing activities:            

Proceeds from equity financing, net     15,104       22,915  
Repayment of long-term debt     —       (10,000 )
Proceeds from financed insurance premiums     385       1,004  
Repayment of financed insurance premiums     (572 )     (294 )
Payment of debt issuance costs     (25 )     (24 )
Payment of at-the-market facility costs     —       (395 )
Proceeds from exercise of stock options     4       76  
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under employee stock purchase plan     81       138  

Cash provided by financing activities     14,977       13,420  
Change in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash     (22,339 )     (10,124 )
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at beginning of period     28,484       42,236  
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at end of period   $ 6,145     $ 32,112  

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:            
Income taxes paid   $ 41     $ —  
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized   $ 1,178     $ 1,934  
Debt issuance costs included in accrued liabilities   $ —     $ 23  
Offering costs included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities   $ 18     $ 353  
Capitalized property, plant, and equipment included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities   $ 90     $ 205  
Issuance of common stock warrants   $ 132     $ —  
Recognition of operating right-of-use lease asset   $ 1,293     $ (1,137 )
Recognition of operating lease liabilities   $ 1,306     $ (1,193 )

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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ALPHA TEKNOVA, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Note 1. Nature of the Business

Teknova produces critical reagents for the discovery, development, and commercialization of novel therapies, vaccines, and molecular 
diagnostics. Our product offerings include pre-poured media plates for cell growth and cloning; liquid cell culture media and supplements for cellular 
expansion; and molecular biology reagents for sample manipulation, resuspension, and purification. Teknova supports customers spanning the life sciences 
market, including pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, contract development and manufacturing organizations, in vitro diagnostic franchises, and 
academic and government research institutions, with catalog and custom, made-to-order products.

Teknova manufactures its products at its Hollister, California, headquarters and stocks inventory of raw materials, components, and finished 
goods at that location. The Company ships products directly from its warehouse in Hollister to its customers and distributors.

 
 Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting, Presentation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying unaudited condensed interim financial statements and related notes have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) regarding interim financial 
reporting. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in the financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been 
condensed or omitted in accordance with such rules and regulations.

The unaudited condensed financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with the audited annual financial statements as of and for 
the year ended December 31, 2023, and, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments, consisting solely of normal recurring adjustments, necessary 
for the fair presentation of the results for the interim periods presented. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses, and related disclosures at the date of the 
financial statements and during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

These unaudited condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited financial statements and the related 
notes thereto as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 27, 
2024 (the 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K). Refer to “Notes to Financial Statements—Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” within the 
2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K for a full list of the Company’s significant accounting policies. The information in those notes has not changed except 
as a result of normal adjustments in the interim periods. 

Teknova has determined that it operates in one reporting unit, one operating segment, and one reportable segment, as the Chief Operating 
Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis for purposes of making operating decisions, 
allocating resources, and evaluating financial performance. 

Going Concern

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 205-40, Presentation of Financial Statements—Going Concern, requires management to evaluate an 
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern for the twelve-month period following the date on which the financial statements are available for issuance. 
Management performed an assessment to determine whether there were conditions or events that, considered individually or in the aggregate, raised 
substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the twelve-month period following the date on which the accompanying 
unaudited financial statements are being issued. 

Previous going concern assessments indicated negative conditions and events related to the Company’s limited capital resources to fund ongoing 
operations and the Company’s ability to comply with future financial covenants under the terms of the Amended Credit Agreement (defined in Note 10), 
both of which raised substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern as described in our 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
However, the Company was in compliance with its financial covenants under the terms of the Amended Credit Agreement as of September 30, 2024 and as 
a result of recent business improvements and actions taken by management in the current fiscal year to amend its credit agreement, reduce operating costs, 
and raise additional capital (as described further in Note 2 below), management believes that there is no longer substantial doubt about the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern for the twelve-month period following the date on which the accompanying 
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unaudited financial statements are being issued. Debt service requirements in the future require that the Company continues to execute its plans both in 
terms of operations and financial results. Additionally, unforeseen events or changes in assumptions may occur and result in material differences between 
the Company’s future financial results or forecasts and the current financial forecast, and those differences could result in management concluding in the 
future that there is substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern based upon the new information.

Private Placement Offering

On July 11, 2024, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement (the Purchase Agreement) and a registration rights agreement in 
connection with a private placement (the Offering) with certain accredited investors. Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Company agreed to offer and 
sell in the Offering 12,385,883 shares of the Company’s common stock, $0.00001 par value per share, at an offering price of $1.24 per share. The 
Company’s controlling stockholder, Telegraph Hill Partners Management Company LLC, through its affiliates Telegraph Hill Partners V, L.P. and THP V 
Affiliates Fund LLC,  the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer and member of its board of directors, Stephen Gunstream, and  the Company’s 
Chief Financial Officer, Matthew Lowell, participated in the Offering and, collectively, purchased an aggregate of 12,217,740 shares. The Company 
received aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $15.4 million from the Offering, before deducting offering expenses of $0.2 million. Offering expenses 
were included as a reduction to additional paid-in capital on the balance sheet. The Offering closed on July 12, 2024.

Reduction in Workforce

On January 11, 2024, the Company carried out a reduction in workforce of approximately 35 positions, aimed at reducing operating expenses. 
The Company incurred $1.3 million of costs in connection with the reduction in workforce related to severance pay and other termination benefits. The 
costs associated with the reduction in workforce were recorded in the quarter ended March 31, 2024, in general and administrative expenses.

On February 1, 2023, the Company carried out a reduction in workforce of approximately 40 positions, aimed at reducing operating expenses. 
The Company incurred $0.7 million of costs in connection with the reduction in workforce related to severance pay and other termination benefits. The 
costs associated with the reduction in workforce were recorded in the quarter ended March 31, 2023, in general and administrative expenses.

Warrants

The Company accounts for warrants as either equity-classified or liability-classified instruments based on an assessment of the warrant’s specific 
terms and applicable authoritative guidance in Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 480, 
Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (ASC 480) and ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815). The assessment considers whether the warrants are 
freestanding financial instruments pursuant to ASC 480, meet the definition of a liability pursuant to ASC 480, and whether the warrants meet all of the 
requirements for equity classification under ASC 815, including whether the warrants are indexed to the Company’s own common stock, among other 
conditions for equity classification. This assessment, which requires the use of professional judgment, is conducted at the time of warrant issuance and as of 
each subsequent quarterly period end date while the warrants are outstanding.

Short-term Held-to-Maturity Investments

The Company invests excess cash balances in short-term U.S. Treasuries. Investments are classified based on the facts and circumstances present 
at the time of purchase. The appropriateness of that classification is subsequently reassessed at each reporting date. As of September 30, 2024, the 
Company has both the ability and intention to hold these investments until maturity and therefore has classified these investments as held-to-maturity and 
recorded them at amortized cost which approximates fair value and presented them in “Short-term investments, held -to-maturity” on the balance sheet. The 
fair value of the Company's short-term investments was based on quoted prices in active markets for these investments (Level 1). The income recognized 
for these investments is recorded within interest income on the statement of operations.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In November 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to 
Reportable Segment Disclosures, which expands public entities’ segment disclosures by requiring disclosure of significant segment expenses that are 
regularly provided to the CODM and included within each reported measure of segment profit or loss, an amount and description of its composition for 
other segment items, and interim disclosures of a reportable segment’s profit or loss and assets. Additionally, all disclosure requirements under the guidance 
are also required for public entities with a single reportable segment. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and 
for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The amendments should be applied retrospectively 
to all 
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prior periods presented in the financial statements. The Company will first apply this standard in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024 and continues to evaluate 
the impact this standard will have on the Company’s disclosures.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, which requires 
disclosure in the rate reconciliation table additional categories of information about federal, state and foreign income taxes and to provide more details 
about the reconciliation items in some categories if the items meet a quantitative threshold. The guidance also requires disclosure of income taxes paid, net 
of refunds, disaggregated by federal (national), state and foreign taxes for annual periods and to disaggregate the information by jurisdiction based on a 
quantitative threshold. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this 
standard to determine its impact on the Company’s disclosures.

Recent Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Final Rules Not Yet Adopted

In March 2024, the SEC adopted final rules under SEC Release No. 33-11275, The Enhancement and Standardization of Climate-Related 
Disclosures for Investors, which requires registrants to provide certain climate-related information in their registration statements and annual reports. The 
rules require information about a registrant’s climate-related risks that have materially impacted, or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on its 
business, results of operations, or financial condition. In addition, certain disclosures related to severe weather events and other natural conditions will be 
required in the registrant’s audited financial statements. Disclosure requirements will begin phasing in for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 
2025. On April 4, 2024, the SEC determined to voluntarily stay the final rules pending certain legal challenges. The Company is currently evaluating the 
impact of these new final rules on its financial statements and disclosures.

 
Note 3. Revenue Recognition

Teknova recognizes revenue from the sale of manufactured products and services when the Company transfers control of promised goods or 
services to customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. Control is 
transferred when the customer has the ability to direct the use of and obtain benefits from the goods or services. The majority of the Company’s sales 
agreements contain performance obligations satisfied at a point in time when control is transferred to the customer. 

Teknova’s revenue, disaggregated by product category, was as follows (in thousands):
 

    For the Three Months Ended September 30,     For the Nine Months Ended September 30,  
    2024     2023     2024     2023  

Lab Essentials   $ 7,161     $ 7,274     $ 22,065     $ 22,112  
Clinical Solutions     1,964       597       5,247       5,859  
Other     451       298       1,168       846  
Total revenue   $ 9,576     $ 8,169     $ 28,480     $ 28,817  

Teknova’s revenue, disaggregated by geographic region, was as follows (in thousands):
 

    For the Three Months Ended September 30,     For the Nine Months Ended September 30,  
    2024     2023     2024     2023  

United States   $ 9,057     $ 7,827     $ 27,155     $ 27,628  
International     519       342       1,325       1,189  
Total revenue   $ 9,576     $ 8,169     $ 28,480     $ 28,817  

 
Note 4. Concentrations of Risk

Customers

Customers who accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s revenues and outstanding balance of accounts receivable and contract assets are 
presented as follows:

 
    For the Three Months Ended September 30,   For the Nine Months Ended September 30,   As of   As of
    2024   2023   2024   2023   September 30, 2024   December 31, 2023

Distributor customer A   19%   20%   18%   18%   21%   16%
Distributor customer B   *   *   *   *   10%   *
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* Represents less than 10%.

The Company’s customers that are distributors, as opposed to direct customers, represent highly diversified customer bases.

Suppliers

Suppliers who accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s inventory purchases and outstanding balance of accounts payable are presented as 
follows:

 
    For the Three Months Ended September 30,   For the Nine Months Ended September 30,   As of   As of
    2024   2023   2024   2023   September 30, 2024   December 31, 2023

Distributor supplier A   37%   46%   37%   39%   21%   18%
Direct supplier A   10%   *   12%   10%   *   *
Direct supplier B   *   13%   *   10%   *   *
* Represents less than 10%.

The Company’s suppliers that are distributors, as opposed to direct suppliers, represent highly diversified supplier bases.
 

Note 5. Inventories, Net

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):
 

   
As of 


September 30, 2024    
As of


December 31, 2023  
Finished goods, net   $ 5,235     $ 8,573  
Work in process     134       47  
Raw materials, net     2,305       2,974  

Total inventories, net   $ 7,674     $ 11,594  
 
Note 6. Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net

Property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):
 

   
As of 


September 30, 2024    
As of


December 31, 2023  
Machinery and equipment   $ 29,765     $ 30,082  
Office furniture and equipment     842       842  
Vehicles     340       291  
Leasehold improvements     24,915       24,673  
     55,862       55,888  
Less—Accumulated depreciation     (11,439 )     (7,528 )
     44,423       48,360  
Construction in progress     2,292       2,004  

Total property, plant, and equipment, net   $ 46,715     $ 50,364  

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, depreciation expense was $1.4 million and $4.1 million, respectively, and for the three 
and nine months ended September 30, 2023, depreciation expense was $1.3 million and $3.2 million, respectively.

Teknova capitalizes interest on funds borrowed to finance certain of its capital expenditures. Capitalized interest is recorded as part of an asset’s 
cost and depreciated over the asset’s useful life. For each of the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, capitalized interest costs were zero and 
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, capitalized interest costs were not significant and $0.9 million, respectively.
 
Note 7. Leases

The Company leases office space, warehouse and manufacturing space, and equipment. The Company’s lease agreements have remaining lease 
terms of one year to 13 years, and some of these leases have renewal and termination options exercisable at the Company’s election. Terms and conditions 
to extend or terminate such leases are recognized as part of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities where reasonably certain to be exercised. All of the 
Company’s leases are operating leases. 
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The components of lease expense and other information related to leases were as follows (in thousands):

 

    For the Three Months Ended September 30,     For the Nine Months Ended September 30,  
    2024     2023     2024     2023  

Operating lease expense   $ 745     $ 640     $ 2,236     $ 2,041  
Variable lease expense     109       54       326       164  
Total lease expense   $ 854     $ 694     $ 2,562     $ 2,205  

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of the lease liabilities was $0.7 million and $2.1 million for the three and nine months ended 
September 30, 2024, respectively, and cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of the lease liabilities was $0.6 million and $2.1 million for the 
three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, respectively. The weighted-average discount rate was 5.0% and the weighted-average remaining lease 
term was 8.2 years as of September 30, 2024. 

Maturities of operating lease liabilities at September 30, 2024 were as follows (in thousands):
 

    Amount  
Remainder of 2024   $ 703  
2025     2,569  
2026     2,627  
2027     2,631  
2028     2,480  
Thereafter     10,296  
Total lease payments     21,306  

Less: imputed interest     (4,105 )

Present value of lease liabilities   $ 17,201  
 
Note 8. Intangible Assets, Net

The following is a summary of intangible assets with definite and indefinite lives (in thousands):
 

    Balance at September 30, 2024     Balance at December 31, 2023  

    Gross    
Accumulated


Amortization     Net     Gross    
Accumulated


Amortization     Net  
Definite Lived:                                    
Customer relationships   $ 9,180     $ 6,552     $ 2,628     $ 9,180     $ 5,691     $ 3,489  
Indefinite Lived:                                    
Tradename     10,750       —       10,750       10,750       —       10,750  

Total intangible assets   $ 19,930     $ 6,552     $ 13,378     $ 19,930     $ 5,691     $ 14,239  

For each of the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, amortization expense was $0.3 million and for each of the nine months ended 
September 30, 2024 and 2023, amortization expense was $0.9 million.

As of September 30, 2024, the remaining weighted-average useful life of definite lived intangible assets was 2.3 years. The estimated future 
amortization expense of intangible assets with definite lives is as follows (in thousands):
 

    Amount  
Remainder of 2024   $ 287  
2025     1,148  
2026     1,148  
2027     45  

Estimated future amortization expense of definite-lived intangible assets   $ 2,628  
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Note 9. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities were comprised of the following (in thousands):
 

   
As of 


September 30, 2024    
As of


December 31, 2023  
Payroll-related   $ 2,712     $ 3,826  
Property, plant, and equipment     90       —  
Deferred revenue     34       16  
Insurance premiums and accrued interest     222       409  
Loss contingency accrual     373       300  
Other     942       1,028  
Total current accrued liabilities   $ 4,373     $ 5,579  

 
On July 8, 2024, the Company entered into a financing agreement with First Insurance Funding for the financing of the Company’s D&O liability 

insurance and related policies. Under the terms of the financing agreement, the Company will pay a total of $0.6 million in premiums, taxes and fees, plus 
interest at an annual percentage rate of 8.49% in seven monthly separate installment payments commencing on July 25, 2024. During the three months 
ended September 30, 2024, the Company made a down payment on the policy of $0.2 million to the insurer and three monthly installments for an aggregate 
of $0.2 million to First Insurance Funding. As of September 30, 2024, the Company owed $0.2 million for insurance premiums and accrued interest. 

 
Note 10. Long-term Debt, Net

On March 8, 2024, the Company entered into limited waivers and amendments (collectively Amendment No. 5) to (i) the May 10, 2022, 
Amended and Restated Credit and Security Agreement (Term Loan), as amended on November 8, 2022, March 28, 2023, July 13, 2023, and September 19, 
2023 and (ii) the May 10, 2022, Amended and Restated Credit and Security Agreement (Revolving Loan) as amended on November 8, 2022, March 28, 
2023, July 13, 2023 and September 19, 2023 (together, the Amended Credit Agreement), in each case with the Company as borrower and with MidCap 
Financial Trust (MidCap) as agent and lender, and the additional lenders from time to time party thereto. 

Amendment No. 5 modifies the credit facility established under the Amended Credit Agreement, which provided for a $57.1 million credit 
facility (the Credit Facility) consisting of a $52.1 million senior secured term loan (the Term Loan) and a $5.0 million working capital facility (the 
Revolver). 

The interest on the Term Loan is based on the forward-looking one-month term Secured Overnight Financing Rate adjusted upward by 0.10% 
(Term SOFR) plus an applicable margin of 7.00%, subject to a Term SOFR floor of 4.50%. If any advance under the Term Loan is prepaid at any time, a 
prepayment fee is charged based on the amount being prepaid and an applicable percentage amount, such as 4%, 3%, or 1%, based on the date the 
prepayment is made. Interest on an outstanding balance under the Revolver is payable monthly in arrears at an annual rate of Term SOFR plus an applicable 
margin of 4.00%, subject to a Term SOFR floor of 4.50%.

The Amended Credit Agreement includes minimum net revenue requirements that are measured on a trailing twelve-month basis and a minimum 
cash requirement. Amendment No. 5 reduced the minimum net revenue requirements for future periods up to and including for the twelve months ending 
December 31, 2024—for example, the Company’s minimum net revenue requirement was reduced for the twelve months ending December 31, 2024, from 
$42.0 million to $34.0 million. Amendment No. 5 also removed those requirements for the periods ending January 31, 2025 through December 31, 2025, 
instead requiring that for each applicable twelve-month period ending after December 31, 2024, the Company’s minimum net revenue requirement will be 
determined by MidCap in its reasonable discretion in consultation with the Company’s senior management and based on financial statements and 
projections delivered to MidCap in accordance with the financial reporting requirements in the Amended Credit Agreement, so long as the minimum net 
revenue requirements for those periods shall not be less than the greater of (x) the applicable minimum net revenue requirement for the twelve-month 
period ending on the last day of the immediately preceding month and (y) $34.0 million. In addition, Amendment No. 5 also removed the advance rate for 
finished goods inventory in the determination of the borrowing base for the Revolver and increased the minimum cash requirement from $9.0 million to 
$10.0 million. Under the terms of the Amended Credit Agreement, cash and cash equivalents as well as short-term investments in U.S. Treasuries are 
included in the determination of the minimum cash covenant. Finally, Amendment No. 5 conditions the next borrowing under the Revolver on the 
Company achieving net revenue for the preceding twelve-month period of at least $38.0 million down from $45.0 million. As a condition to the 
effectiveness of Amendment No. 5, the Company also issued an equity-classified warrant with a fair value of $0.1 million as described further in “Note 11. 
Stockholder’s Equity.” This warrant was recorded as additional debt issuance costs, which is being amortized to interest expense over the term of the 
Amended Credit Agreement using the effective interest method.
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The maturity date of the Credit Facility is May 1, 2027. On the date of termination of the Term Loan or the date on which the obligations under 
the Term Loan become due and payable in full, the Company will pay an exit fee in an amount equal to 9.00% of the total aggregate principal amount of 
term loans made pursuant to the Term Loan (including amendments thereto) as of such date. All loans issued under the Credit Facility are collateralized by 
the Company’s assets.

Long-term debt, net consisted of the following (in thousands): 
 

   
As of 


September 30, 2024    
As of


December 31, 2023  
Term Loan   $ 12,135     $ 12,135  
Cumulative accretion of exit fee     1,472       1,261  
Unamortized debt discount and debt issuance costs     (222 )     (145 )
Total debt     13,385       13,251  
Less: Current portion of long-term debt     (2,528 )     —  

Long-term debt, net of current portion   $ 10,857     $ 13,251  

At September 30, 2024, the scheduled maturities of the Company’s debt obligations were as follows (in thousands):
 

    Amount  
Remainder of 2024   $ —  
2025     3,539  
2026     6,068  
2027     2,528  

Total   $ 12,135  

As of September 30, 2024, the fair value of the Company’s debt approximated its carrying value. The fair value of the Company’s debt was 
based on observable market inputs (Level 2).

 
Note 11. Stockholders’ Equity

At-the-Market Facility

On March 30, 2023, the Company entered into a sales agreement (the ATM Facility) with Cowen and Company, LLC (Cowen), under which the 
Company may offer and sell, from time to time, shares of its common stock having aggregate gross proceeds of up to $50.0 million. The issuance and sale 
of these shares pursuant to the ATM Facility are deemed “at the market” offerings as defined in Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the 
Securities Act), and are registered under the Securities Act. The Company will pay a commission of up to 3.0% of gross sales proceeds of any common 
stock sold under the ATM Facility. The aggregate market value of shares eligible for sale under the ATM Facility will be subject to the limitations of 
General Instruction I.B.6 of Form S-3, to the extent required under such instruction. 

Warrant to Purchase Common Stock

On March 8, 2024, as a condition to the effectiveness of Amendment No. 5, the Company issued to MidCap Funding XXVII a warrant to 
purchase up to an aggregate of 125,000 shares (the Common Warrant) of common stock with an exercise price of $2.9934 per share, subject to adjustment 
as provided therein.

The Company determined that the Common Warrant is not a liability within the scope of ASC 480, but met the requirements to be classified 
within stockholders’ equity, because the warrant is indexed to the Company’s common stock and met all of the conditions for equity classification in 
accordance with ASC 815. Accordingly, the Common Warrant was recorded as a component of additional paid-in capital in the statements of stockholders’ 
equity at the time of issuance. The Common Warrant was valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: (i) fair 
value of common stock of $2.8500, (ii) exercise price of $2.9934, (iii) term of 5 years, (iv) dividend rate of 0%, (v) volatility of 36.70%, and (vi) risk free 
interest rate of 4.06%.

On October 15, 2024, MidCap exercised the Common Warrant in full and the Company issued 65,036 shares of common stock through a 
cashless exercise in accordance with the conversion terms.
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Note 12. Stock-Based Compensation

Equity Incentive Plans

The Company maintains a stock incentive plan that permits the granting of incentive stock options or nonqualified stock options, stock 
appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, performance awards, and other stock-based awards. The equity-based awards for 
employees generally vest over a four-year period, pursuant to two different vesting schedules. For initial equity-based awards granted to employees, the 
first vest is generally a one-year cliff vest, followed by monthly vesting for the final three years. Thereafter, annual equity-based awards granted to 
employees typically vest monthly over the four-year vest term. The initial equity-based awards granted to the Company’s non-employee, independent 
directors upon appointment to the board of directors will vest over a three-year period, with the first vest being a one-year cliff, followed by monthly 
vesting over the remaining two years. Thereafter, annual equity-based awards granted to the Company’s non-employee, independent directors will cliff vest 
after one year from the date of grant.

Stock Options

The following table summarizes the stock option activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 (in thousands, except share and per 
share data):
 
 

 
Number of


Shares    

Weighted

Average


Exercise

Price


per Share    

Weighted Average

Remaining


Contractual

Term 


(in years)    

Aggregate

Intrinsic


Value 

(in thousands)  

Outstanding at January 1, 2024     4,041,807     $ 6.41       7.53     $ 5,159  
Granted     730,100     $ 2.86              
Exercised     (1,779 )   $ 1.97              
Forfeited     (470,342 )   $ 9.12              
Expired     (320,156 )   $ 11.94              

Outstanding at September 30, 2024     3,979,630     $ 5.00       7.08     $ 8,262  
Exercisable at September 30, 2024     2,310,762     $ 5.22       6.49     $ 5,362  
Vested and expected to vest at September 30, 2024     3,694,948     $ 5.35       7.29     $ 7,013  

The weighted average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes pricing model for stock options granted during the three and nine months ended 
September 30, 2024, were as follows:

 
    For the Three Months Ended September 30,     For the Nine Months Ended September 30,  
    2024     2023     2024     2023  

Estimated dividend yield     - %    - %    - %    - %
Weighted-average expected stock price volatility     36.05 %    35.43 %    35.91 %    35.08 %
Weighted-average risk-free interest rate     3.49 %    4.54 %    4.33 %    4.15 %
Expected average term of options (in years)     6.25       3.00       6.25       5.95  
Weighted-average fair value of common stock   $ 4.40     $ 1.95     $ 2.86     $ 5.05  
Weighted-average fair value per option   $ 1.84     $ 0.57     $ 1.24     $ 2.12  
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Restricted Stock

The following table summarizes the restricted stock unit activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 (in thousands, except share and 
per share data):
 
 

 
Number of


Shares    

Weighted

Average


Grant Date 

Fair Value


per Share    

Weighted Average

Remaining


Contractual

Term (in


years)    

Aggregate

Intrinsic


Value 

(in thousands)  

Outstanding at January 1, 2024     155,780     $ 5.05       1.36     $ 581  
Granted     60,000     $ 1.29              
Vested     (67,169 )   $ 4.58              
Forfeited     (21,000 )   $ 5.41              

Outstanding at September 30, 2024     127,611     $ 3.47       1.09     $ 618  
Vested and expected to vest at September 30, 2024     127,611     $ 3.47       1.09     $ 618  

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company maintains an employee stock purchase plan (ESPP) that authorizes the issuance of shares of common stock pursuant to purchase 
rights granted to eligible employees. Unless otherwise determined by the Company’s board of directors, shares of the Company’s common stock will be 
purchased for the accounts of employees participating in the Company’s ESPP at a price per share equal to the lesser of (i) 85% of the fair market value of a 
share of the Company’s common stock on the first day of an offering; or (ii) 85% of the fair market value of a share of the Company’s common stock on the 
date of purchase. Offering periods are generally six months long; offering periods begin on June 1 and December 1 of each year. The Company issued zero 
and 54,314 shares of common stock under the ESPP during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively. The Company issued zero 
and 82,034 shares of common stock under the ESPP during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, respectively.

Repricing of Outstanding and Unexercised Options

In January 2024, the Company’s board of directors approved a one-time repricing of certain previously granted and still outstanding vested and 
unvested stock option awards held by eligible employees, executive officers, and non-employee directors. As a result, the exercise price for these awards 
will be lowered to $2.97 per share effective September 14, 2025, which was the closing price of the Company’s common stock as reported on the Nasdaq 
Global Stock Market on March 14, 2024, so long as the holder remains employed by the Company or continues to serve as a member of the board of 
directors through September 14, 2025 absent earlier trigger events defined in the option repricing plan. No other terms of the stock options were modified, 
and the stock options will continue to vest according to their original vesting schedules and will retain their original expiration dates. As a result of the 
repricing, 1,631,016 vested and unvested stock options outstanding as of March 14, 2024, with original exercise prices ranging from $3.02 to $27.49, were 
repriced.

The repricing on March 14, 2024, resulted in incremental stock-based compensation expense of $0.9 million, of which $0.5 million related to 
vested stock option awards and was expensed on the repricing date. The remaining $0.4 million related to unvested stock option awards and is being 
amortized on a straight-line basis over the weighted-average vesting period of those awards of approximately 2.38 years as of March 14, 2024.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense included in the accompanying condensed financial statements was as follows (in thousands):
 

    For the Three Months Ended September 30,     For the Nine Months Ended September 30,  
    2024     2023     2024     2023  

Cost of sales   $ 10     $ 36     $ 89     $ 112  
Research and development     18       43       65       120  
Sales and marketing     33       168       162       492  
General and administrative     699       788       2,584       2,391  
Total stock-based compensation expense   $ 760     $ 1,035     $ 2,900     $ 3,115  

Stock-based compensation expense related to stock options was $0.7 million and $2.7 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 
2024, respectively, and $0.9 million and $2.8 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, 
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respectively. Unrecognized compensation expense related to stock options was $4.6 million at September 30, 2024, which is expected to be recognized as 
expense over the weighted-average period of 2.90 years.

Stock-based compensation expense related to restricted stock units was $0.1 million and $0.2 million for the three and nine months ended 
September 30, 2024, respectively, and $0.1 million and $0.2 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, respectively. Unrecognized 
compensation expense related to restricted stock units was $0.4 million at September 30, 2024, which is expected to be recognized as expense over the 
weighted-average period of 1.62 years.

Stock-based compensation expense related to the ESPP was not significant for the three or nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively, 
and not significant and $0.1 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, respectively. Total compensation cost related to the ESPP not 
yet recognized was not significant at September 30, 2024. As of September 30, 2024, an insignificant amount has been withheld on behalf of employees for 
future purchases under the ESPP.

 
Note 13. Income Taxes

For the three months ended September 30, 2024, the Company’s income tax benefit was not significant, compared to the three months ended 
September 30, 2023, when the Company recorded a minimal income tax provision. The effective tax rates for the three months ended September 30, 2024 
and 2023 were 0.1% and (0.1)%, respectively. The effective tax rates differ from the federal statutory rate primarily due to operating losses not expected to 
produce an income tax benefit.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Company’s income tax benefit was not significant, compared to the nine months ended 
September 30, 2023, when the Company recorded a minimal income tax provision. The effective tax rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 
and 2023 were 0.2% and (0.0)%, respectively. The effective tax rates differ from the federal statutory rate primarily due to operating losses not expected to 
produce an income tax benefit.

The Company had insignificant unrecognized tax benefits as of September 30, 2024 and 2023. The Company recognizes interest and penalties 
accrued on any unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense. The Company does not expect the balance of unrecognized tax benefits to 
change significantly over the next twelve months. The Company has not accrued interest or penalties related to uncertain tax positions as of September 30, 
2024 or 2023.

 
Note 14. Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the 
period. Diluted net loss per share is computed by giving effect to all potentially dilutive common stock equivalents to the extent they are dilutive. For 
purposes of this calculation, stock options, restricted stock units, employee stock purchase rights, and warrants to purchase common stock, are considered 
to be common stock equivalents but have been excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share as their effect is anti-dilutive for all periods 
presented.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share (in thousands, except share and per share data):
 

    For the Three Months Ended September 30,     For the Nine Months Ended September 30,  
    2024     2023     2024     2023  

Net loss   $ (7,565 )   $ (10,153 )   $ (21,026 )   $ (26,124 )
Weighted average shares used in computing net loss per share—basic 
and diluted     51,821,395       29,956,930       44,520,132       28,810,068  
Net loss per share—basic and diluted   $ (0.15 )   $ (0.34 )   $ (0.47 )   $ (0.91 )

The following is a summary of the common stock equivalents for the securities outstanding during the respective periods that have been excluded 
from the computation of diluted net loss per common share, as their effect would be anti-dilutive:
 

    For the Three Months Ended September 30,     For the Nine Months Ended September 30,  
    2024     2023     2024     2023  

Employee share-based awards to purchase common stock     3,873,226       4,019,909       3,970,116       4,000,857  
Warrants to purchase common stock     125,000       —       94,434       —  
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Note 15. Related Parties

The Company has identified Meeches LLC (Meeches) as a related party through common control. Meeches is controlled by Ted Davis and Irene 
Davis. Irene Davis is a former officer and current director, Ted Davis is a founder and former director, and both are greater than five percent stockholders of 
the Company. Prior to May 16, 2023, the Company leased certain real property in Mansfield, Massachusetts, from Meeches. For each of the three and nine 
months ended September 30, 2024, the Company did not make any lease payments to Meeches. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, 
the Company paid Meeches lease payments zero and $0.1 million, respectively.
 
Note 16. Contingencies

From time to time, we may become involved in lawsuits and other claims arising from our ordinary course of business. The Company regularly 
evaluates its exposure to threatened or pending litigation and other business contingencies. Because of the uncertainties related to the amount of loss from 
litigation and other business contingencies, the recording of losses relating to such exposures requires significant judgment about the potential range of 
outcomes. We establish loss provisions for matters in which losses are probable and can be reasonably estimated. If a loss is not both probable and 
reasonably estimable, or if an exposure to loss exists in excess of the amount accrued, the Company assesses whether there is at least a reasonable 
possibility that a loss, or additional loss, may have been incurred. If there is a reasonable possibility that a loss, or additional loss, may have been incurred, 
the Company will disclose the estimate of the possible loss or range of loss if it is material and an estimate can be made, or disclose that such an estimate 
cannot be made. The determination as to whether a loss can reasonably be considered to be possible or probable is based on our assessment, together with 
legal counsel, regarding the ultimate outcome of the matter. As additional information about current or future litigation or other contingencies becomes 
available, the Company will assess whether adjustments should be made to legal accruals.

In August 2023, a former Teknova employee filed a claim with the California Labor and Workforce Development Agency alleging various 
causes of action under California’s labor, wage, and hour laws. The plaintiff generally alleged that Teknova did not appropriately calculate and pay meal 
break premiums and otherwise failed to calculate and pay appropriate overtime wages or bonuses to certain of its California non-exempt employees. As of 
December 31, 2023, the Company had accrued its best estimate of potential loss related to a possible settlement of the claims of the former employee and 
other employees who may assert similar claims, in the amount of $0.3 million, which is included within “Accrued liabilities” on the Balance Sheet. On June 
6, 2024, a mediation took place, in the course of which Teknova agreed to settle the plaintiff’s claims for $0.4 million (the Settlement), resulting in an 
incremental accrual of $0.1 million during the three months ended June 30, 2024. Because the plaintiff brought his claims on behalf of himself as an 
individual and as a representative of a purported class of others similarly situated, a court must approve the Settlement before Teknova will pay any 
amounts pursuant to the Settlement. As of September 30, 2024, the Company has therefore accrued $0.4 million within “Accrued liabilities” on the Balance 
Sheet.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with our unaudited condensed 
financial statements and related notes thereto included in Part I, Item I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and with our audited financial statements 
and related notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2023, included in the 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K (the 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-
K) filed on March 27, 2024, with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). For a discussion of factors that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in the following discussion and analysis and elsewhere in 
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, you should review the risk factors identified in Part I, Item 1A, Risk Factors, of our 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-
K and in Item 1A, Risk Factors, of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

As in Item 1. of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, in this Item 2, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “Teknova,” the “Company,” 
“we,” “us,” and “our” refer to Alpha Teknova, Inc.

Overview

Since our founding in 1996, we have been producing critical reagents for the discovery, development, and commercialization of novel therapies, 
vaccines, and molecular diagnostics. Our more than 2,500 active customers span the entire continuum of the life sciences market, including leading 
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, contract development and manufacturing organizations, in vitro diagnostics franchises, and academic and 
government research institutions. Our Company is built around our knowledge, methods, and know-how in our proprietary manufacturing processes, which 
are highly adaptable and configurable. These proprietary processes enable us to manufacture and deliver high-quality, custom, made-to-order products with 
short turnaround times and at scale, across all stages of our customers’ product development, from early research through commercialization.

We have two primary product categories: Lab Essentials and Clinical Solutions. We offer three primary product types: (i) pre-poured media 
plates for cell growth and cloning; (ii) liquid cell culture media and supplements for cellular expansion; and (iii) molecular biology reagents for sample 
manipulation, resuspension, and purification. Our liquid cell culture media and supplements and molecular biology reagents are available in both of our two 
product categories; pre-poured media plates are available in our Lab Essentials category only. 

We are ISO 13485:2016 certified, enabling us to manufacture products for use in diagnostic and therapeutic applications. Our certification allows 
us to offer solutions across the entire customer product development workflow, supporting our customers’ need for materials in greater volume and that 
meet increasingly stringent quality requirements as they scale from research to commercialization.

We manufacture our products at our Hollister, California, headquarters and stock inventory of raw materials, components, and finished goods at 
that campus. We rely on a limited number of suppliers for certain raw materials, and we have no long-term supply arrangements with our suppliers, as we 
order on a purchase order basis. We ship our products directly from our warehouse in Hollister, California, to our customers and distributors, generally 
pursuant to purchase orders. We typically recognize revenue when products are shipped.

We generated revenue of $9.6 million during the three months ended September 30, 2024, which represents an increase of $1.4 million compared 
to revenue of $8.2 million during the three months ended September 30, 2023. For the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, only 5.4% and 
4.2%, respectively, of our revenue was generated from customers located outside of the United States. We generated revenue of $28.5 million during the 
nine months ended September 30, 2024, which represents a decrease of $0.3 million compared to revenue of $28.8 million during the nine months ended 
September 30, 2023. For the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, only 4.7% and 4.1%, respectively, of our revenue was generated from 
customers located outside of the United States. Our sales outside of the United States are denominated in U.S. Dollars.

We had an operating loss of $7.4 million during the three months ended September 30, 2024, compared to an operating loss of $8.8 million 
during the three months ended September 30, 2023. We had an operating loss of $20.5 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2024, 
compared to an operating loss of $24.7 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2023. While our expenses may fluctuate over the short term, 
we expect our expenses will continue to increase in future periods, but at a slower rate, in connection with our ongoing activities as we:
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• attract, hire, and retain qualified personnel;

• invest in processes and infrastructure to improve operating efficiency and expand capacity at our facilities, including the ramp up of our 
new, state-of-the-art manufacturing, warehouse, and distribution facilities; and

• build our brand and market, and sell our products and services.

Impact of Broader Economic Trends on Our Business

We are closely monitoring economic uncertainty in the U.S. and abroad. General inflation in the U.S. has risen to levels not experienced in recent 
decades. While the rate of inflation has moderated in 2024, general inflation, including rising prices for our raw materials and other inputs, as well as rising 
salaries and other expenses, negatively impact our business by increasing our cost of sales and operating expenses. In addition, during 2023 and early 2024, 
the U.S. Federal Reserve has raised interest rates in response to concerns about inflation, and although the U.S. Federal Reserve lowered interest rates in 
September of 2024, the direction and timing of future interest rate changes remains uncertain. Inflation, together with increased interest rates, may cause 
our customers to reduce, delay, or cancel orders for our goods and services, thereby causing a decrease in or change in timing of sales of our products and 
services. We cannot predict the impact of future inflation and interest rate changes on the results of our operations. For further information regarding the 
impact of these economic factors on the Company, please see the risk factors identified in Part I, Item 1A, Risk Factors, of our 2023 Annual Report on 
Form 10-K.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2024, and Three Months Ended September 30, 2023

The following tables set forth our results of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (dollars in thousands):
 

    For the Three Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  
Revenue   $ 9,576     $ 8,169     $ 1,407       17.2 %
Cost of sales     9,486       6,697       2,789       41.6 %
Gross profit     90       1,472       (1,382 )     (93.9 )%
Operating expenses:                        

Research and development     627       1,397       (770 )     (55.1 )%
Sales and marketing     1,640       2,412       (772 )     (32.0 )%
General and administrative     4,968       6,138       (1,170 )     (19.1 )%
Amortization of intangible assets     287       287       —       —  

Total operating expenses     7,522       10,234       (2,712 )     (26.5 )%
Loss from operations     (7,432 )     (8,762 )     1,330       (15.2 )%
Other expenses, net                        

Interest expense, net     (141 )     (791 )     650       (82.2 )%
Loss on extinguishment of debt     —       (824 )     824       (100.0 )%
Other income, net     —       233       (233 )     (100.0 )%

Total other expenses, net     (141 )     (1,382 )     1,241       (89.8 )%
Loss before income taxes     (7,573 )     (10,144 )     2,571       (25.3 )%

(Benefit from) provision for income taxes     (8 )     9       (17 )     (188.9 )%
Net loss   $ (7,565 )   $ (10,153 )   $ 2,588       (25.5 )%

 
Revenue

Our revenue disaggregated by product category for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, was as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

    For the Three Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  
Lab Essentials   $ 7,161     $ 7,274     $ (113 )     (1.6 )%
Clinical Solutions     1,964       597       1,367       229.0 %
Other     451       298       153       51.3 %
Total revenue   $ 9,576     $ 8,169     $ 1,407       17.2 %
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Total revenue was $9.6 million and $8.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Lab Essentials revenue was $7.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024, a decrease of $0.1 million, or 1.6%, compared to $7.3 
million for the three months ended September 30, 2023. The decrease in Lab Essentials revenue was attributable to lower average revenue per customer, 
partially offset by an increased number of customers. 

Clinical Solutions revenue was $2.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024, an increase of $1.4 million, or 229.0%, compared to 
$0.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023. The increase in Clinical Solutions revenue was primarily attributable to an increased number 
of customers and, to a lesser extent, higher average revenue per customer. 

Our revenue disaggregated by geographic region, for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, was as follows (dollars in 
thousands):

 
    For the Three Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  
United States   $ 9,057     $ 7,827     $ 1,230       15.7 %
International     519       342       177       51.8 %
Total revenue   $ 9,576     $ 8,169     $ 1,407       17.2 %

 
Revenue from U.S. sales was $9.1 million and $7.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Revenue 

from U.S. sales as a percentage of our total revenue was consistent period over period, representing 94.6% and 95.8% of our total revenue during the three 
months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Revenue from international sales was $0.5 million and $0.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
Revenue from international sales as a percentage of our total revenue was also consistent period over period, representing 5.4% and 4.2% of our total 
revenue during the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Gross profit

Our gross profit for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, was as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

    For the Three Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  

Cost of sales   $ 9,486     $ 6,697     $ 2,789       41.6 %
Gross profit     90       1,472       (1,382 )     (93.9 )%
Gross profit %     0.9 %    18.0 %           

 
Gross profit percentage was 0.9% and 18.0% for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The decrease in gross profit 

percentage was primarily driven by $2.8 million of non-recurring and non-cash charges related to the disposal of expired inventory and write down of 
excess inventory created in the second half of 2022 when we increased production to meet high demand. Excluding the $2.8 million of non-recurring and 
non-cash charges, the gross profit percentage for the three months ended September 30, 2024, would have been 29.8%, or an increase of more than 10% 
primarily driven by higher Clinical Solutions revenue coupled with reduced headcount.

Operating expenses

Our operating expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, were as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

    For the Three Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  

Research and development   $ 627     $ 1,397     $ (770 )     (55.1 )%
Sales and marketing     1,640       2,412       (772 )     (32.0 )%
General and administrative     4,968       6,138       (1,170 )     (19.1 )%
Amortization of intangible assets     287       287       —       —  
Total operating expenses   $ 7,522     $ 10,234     $ (2,712 )     (26.5 )%

 
Research and development expenses were $0.6 million and $1.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

The decrease was primarily driven by reduced headcount and supplies expense.
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Sales and marketing expenses were $1.6 million and $2.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The 
decrease was primarily driven by reduced headcount.

General and administrative expenses were $5.0 million and $6.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
Excluding the one-time, non-recurring charge of $0.4 million related to the write-off of ATM Facility costs during the three months ended September 30, 
2023, general and administrative expenses decreased $0.8 million compared to the three months ended September 30, 2023. The decrease was driven by 
reduced spending, primarily in professional fees and insurance. 

Amortization of intangible assets was consistent at $0.3 million for each of the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023.
 
Other expenses, net

Our other expenses, net for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, were as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

    For the Three Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  

Interest expense, net   $ (141 )   $ (791 )   $ 650       (82.2 )%
Loss on extinguishment of debt     —       (824 )     824       (100.0 )%
Other income, net     —       233       (233 )     (100.0 )%
Total other expenses, net   $ (141 )   $ (1,382 )   $ 1,241       (89.8 )%

 
Total other expenses, net was $0.1 million and $1.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The decrease 

in total other expenses, net was primarily due to the $0.8 million loss on extinguishment of debt incurred during the three months ended September 30, 
2023. Additionally, interest expense was lower due to a lower debt balance outstanding despite higher interest rates, partially offset by higher interest 
income earned on short-term liquid investments. 

 
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes

Our (benefit from) and provision for income taxes for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, was as follows (dollars in 
thousands):

 
    For the Three Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  

(Benefit from) provision for income taxes   $ (8 )   $ 9     $ (17 )     (188.9 )%
Effective tax rate     0.1 %    (0.1 )%           

 
Our benefit from income taxes was not significant for the three months ended September 30, 2024, and our provision for income taxes was not 

significant for the three months ended September 30, 2023. The effective tax rates for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 were 0.1% and 
(0.1)%, respectively. The effective tax rates differ from the federal statutory rate primarily due to operating losses not expected to produce an income tax 
benefit.
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Comparison of the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024, and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023

The following tables set forth our results of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 (dollars in thousands):
 

    For the Nine Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  
Revenue   $ 28,480     $ 28,817     $ (337 )     (1.2 )%
Cost of sales     23,377       19,856       3,521       17.7 %
Gross profit     5,103       8,961       (3,858 )     (43.1 )%
Operating expenses:                        

Research and development     2,165       4,256       (2,091 )     (49.1 )%
Sales and marketing     4,763       6,929       (2,166 )     (31.3 )%
General and administrative     17,832       19,426       (1,594 )     (8.2 )%
Amortization of intangible assets     861       860       1       0.1 %
Long-lived assets impairment     —       2,195       (2,195 )     (100.0 )%

Total operating expenses     25,621       33,666       (8,045 )     (23.9 )%
Loss from operations     (20,518 )     (24,705 )     4,187       (16.9 )%
Other expenses, net                        

Interest expense, net     (558 )     (1,006 )     448       (44.5 )%
Loss on extinguishment of debt     —       (824 )     824       (100.0 )%
Other income, net     —       417       (417 )     (100.0 )%

Total other expenses, net     (558 )     (1,413 )     855       (60.5 )%
Loss before income taxes     (21,076 )     (26,118 )     5,042       (19.3 )%

(Benefit from) provision for income taxes     (50 )     6       (56 )     (933.3 )%
Net loss   $ (21,026 )   $ (26,124 )   $ 5,098       (19.5 )%

 
Revenue

Our revenue disaggregated by product category for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, was as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

    For the Nine Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  
Lab Essentials   $ 22,065     $ 22,112     $ (47 )     (0.2 )%
Clinical Solutions     5,247       5,859       (612 )     (10.4 )%
Other     1,168       846       322       38.1 %
Total revenue   $ 28,480     $ 28,817     $ (337 )     (1.2 )%

Total revenue was $28.5 million and $28.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Lab Essentials revenue was $22.1 million in each of the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023. Lab Essentials revenue was consistent 
as the decline in average revenue per customer was offset by a similar increase in number of customers. 

Clinical Solutions revenue was $5.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, a decrease of $0.6 million, or 10.4%, compared to 
$5.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. The decrease in Clinical Solutions revenue was attributable to lower average revenue per 
customer, partially offset by an increased number of customers. Excluding revenue of $2.7 million from a single large order, Clinical Solutions revenue was 
up 66% for the nine months ended September 30, 2024.

Our revenue disaggregated by geographic region, for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, was as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

    For the Nine Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  
United States   $ 27,155     $ 27,628     $ (473 )     (1.7 )%
International     1,325       1,189       136       11.4 %
Total revenue   $ 28,480     $ 28,817     $ (337 )     (1.2 )%
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Revenue from U.S. sales was $27.2 million and $27.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Revenue 

from U.S. sales as a percentage of our total revenue was consistent period over period, representing 95.3% and 95.9% of our total revenue during the nine 
months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Revenue from international sales was $1.3 million and $1.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
Revenue from international sales as a percentage of our total revenue was also consistent period over period, representing 4.7% and 4.1% of our total 
revenue during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Gross profit

Our gross profit for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, was as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

    For the Nine Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  

Cost of sales   $ 23,377     $ 19,856     $ 3,521       17.7 %
Gross profit     5,103       8,961       (3,858 )     (43.1 )%
Gross profit %     17.9 %    31.1 %           

 
Gross profit percentage was 17.9% and 31.1% for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The decrease in gross 

profit percentage was primarily driven by $2.8 million of non-recurring and non-cash charges related to the disposal of expired inventory and write down of 
excess inventory created in the second half of 2022 when we increased production to meet high demand. Excluding the $2.8 million of non-recurring and 
non-cash charges, gross profit for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, would have been 27.6%. The decrease in gross profit was also driven by 
increased overhead costs, largely depreciation expense following the completion of our new manufacturing facility in the prior year, which were partially 
offset by reduced headcount. 

Operating expenses

Our operating expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, were as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

    For the Nine Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  

Research and development   $ 2,165     $ 4,256     $ (2,091 )     (49.1 )%
Sales and marketing     4,763       6,929       (2,166 )     (31.3 )%
General and administrative     17,832       19,426       (1,594 )     (8.2 )%
Amortization of intangible assets     861       860       1       0.1 %
Long-lived assets impairment     —       2,195       (2,195 )     (100.0 )%
Total operating expenses   $ 25,621     $ 33,666     $ (8,045 )     (23.9 )%

 
Research and development expenses were $2.2 million and $4.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

The decrease was primarily driven by reduced headcount and supplies expense.

Sales and marketing expenses were $4.8 million and $6.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The 
decrease was primarily driven by reduced headcount.

General and administrative expenses were $17.8 million and $19.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
Excluding the one-time, non-recurring charges related to the reduction in workforce of $1.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and the 
non-recurring charges related to the reduction in workforce of $0.7 million and the $0.4 million write off related to ATM Facility costs during the nine 
months ended September 30, 2023, general and administrative expenses decreased $1.8 million compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2023. 
The decrease was driven by reduced headcount and spending, primarily on professional fees and insurance, partially offset by increased stock-based 
compensation expense related to the stock option repricing as well as facility costs. See “Notes to Financial Statements—Note 12. Stock-Based 
Compensation” for a more detailed discussion of the stock option repricing.

Amortization of intangible assets was consistent at $0.9 million for each of the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023.
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We incurred a $2.2 million impairment charge related to long-lived assets for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, with no comparable 
charges for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. Refer to “Notes to Financial Statements—Note 6—Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net,” in our 
2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K for details regarding the impairment. 

Other expenses, net

Our other expenses, net for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, were as follows (dollars in thousands):
 

    For the Nine Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  

Interest expense, net   $ (558 )   $ (1,006 )   $ 448       (44.5 )%
Loss on extinguishment of debt     —       (824 )     824       (100.0 )%
Other income, net     —       417       (417 )     (100.0 )%
Total other expenses, net   $ (558 )   $ (1,413 )   $ 855       (60.5 )%

Total other expenses, net was $0.6 million and $1.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The decrease 
in total other expenses, net was primarily due to the $0.8 million loss on extinguishment of debt incurred during the nine months ended September 30, 2023 
coupled with lower interest capitalized. Additionally, interest expense was lower due to a lower debt balance outstanding despite higher interest rates, 
partially offset by higher interest income earned on short-term liquid investments. Capitalized interest costs were zero and $0.9 million for the nine months 
ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

(Benefit from) provision for income taxes

Our (benefit from) and provision for income taxes for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, was as follows (dollars in 
thousands):
 

    For the Nine Months Ended September 30,              
    2024     2023     $ Change     % Change  

(Benefit from) provision for income taxes   $ (50 )   $ 6     $ (56 )     (933.3 )%
Effective tax rate     0.2 %    (0.0 )%           

 
Our benefit from income taxes was not significant for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, and our provision for income taxes was not 

significant for the nine months ended September 30, 2023. The effective tax rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 were 0.2% and 
(0.0)%, respectively. The effective tax rates differ from the federal statutory rate primarily due to operating losses not expected to produce an income tax 
benefit.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources

The primary sources of financing for our operations are our (i) initial public offering, which we completed in June 2021 (IPO) and resulted in net 
proceeds to us of $99.1 million, (ii) registered direct offering and concurrent private placement completed in September 2023 (collectively, the September 
2023 Offerings), which resulted in aggregate gross proceeds of $22.9 million before deducting offering expenses of $0.4 million and the prepayment of 
$10.0 million owed under the Term Loan as discussed below, and (iii) private placement completed in July 2024 (the July 2024 Offering), which resulted in 
aggregate gross proceeds of $15.4 million before deducting offering expenses payable by the Company.

To facilitate our expected growth, we have used our sources of liquidity to make investments to expand our operations and increase capacity, and 
may continue to do so in the future. In particular, we have completed the build out of our new manufacturing facility and have made improvements to our 
warehouse and distribution facilities, all located in Hollister, California.

Our principal liquidity requirements are to fund our operations and capital expenditures. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 
2024, we incurred net losses of $7.6 million and $21.0 million, respectively. In addition, as of September 30, 2024, we had an accumulated deficit of $112.8 
million and $12.1 million in borrowings outstanding under our Term Loan (defined below). As of September 30, 2024, we had $36.2 million of working 
capital, which included $31.7 million in cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. 

As of September 30, 2024, we had an outstanding principal amount of $12.1 million under a senior secured term loan (the Term Loan) pursuant 
to Amendment No. 5 to our Credit Agreement with MidCap Financial Trust (MidCap). On March 8, 2024, we entered into limited waivers and amendments 
(collectively Amendment No. 5, or, as amended, the Amended Credit Agreement) which 
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includes a waiver from MidCap of the revenue covenant violations for each of the periods ending November 30, 2023 and January 31, 2024. Amendment 
No. 5 also reduced the revenue covenants for future periods up to and including for the twelve months ending December 31, 2024, from $42.0 million to 
$34.0 million. Amendment No. 5 also removed those requirements for the periods ending January 31, 2025 through December 31, 2025, instead requiring 
that for each applicable twelve-month period ending after December 31, 2024, our minimum net revenue requirement will be determined by MidCap in its 
reasonable discretion in consultation with the our senior management and based on financial statements and projections delivered to MidCap in accordance 
with the financial reporting requirements in the Amended Credit Agreement, so long as the minimum net revenue requirements for those periods shall not 
be less than the greater of (x) the applicable minimum net revenue requirement for the twelve-month period ending on the last day of the immediately 
preceding month and (y) $34.0 million. In addition, Amendment No. 5 also removed the advance rate for finished goods inventory in the determination of 
the borrowing base for the Revolver and increased the minimum cash requirement from $9.0 million to $10.0 million. Under the terms of the Amended 
Credit Agreement, cash and cash equivalents as well as short-term investments in U.S. Treasuries are included in the determination of the minimum cash 
covenant. Finally, Amendment No. 5 conditions the next borrowing under the Revolver on the Company achieving net revenue for the preceding twelve-
month period of at least $38.0 million down from $45.0 million. See “Notes to Financial Statements—Note 10—Long-term Debt, Net,” for a more detailed 
discussion of the material terms of our Amended Credit Agreement.

We were in compliance with our financial covenants under the terms of the Amended Credit Agreement as of September 30, 2024. As a result of 
recent business improvements, benefits from the Amended Credit Agreement, and actions taken by management in the current fiscal year to reduce 
operating costs, and raise additional capital, management believes that there is no longer substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern 
for the twelve-month period following the date on which the accompanying unaudited financial statements are being issued. However, debt service 
requirements in the future require that we continue to execute our plans both in terms of operations and financial results. Additionally, unforeseen events or 
changes in assumptions may occur and result in material differences between our future financial results or forecasts and the current financial forecast, and 
those differences could result in management concluding in the future, as it has in the past, that there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a 
going concern based upon the new information.

We also have an ATM Facility under which we may offer and sell, from time to time, shares of our common stock having aggregate gross 
proceeds of up to $50.0 million. We will pay a commission of up to 3.0% of gross sales proceeds of any common stock sold under the ATM Facility. The 
aggregate market value of shares eligible for sale under the ATM Facility will be subject to the limitations of General Instruction I.B.6 of Form S-3, to the 
extent required under such instruction. See “Notes to Financial Statements—Note 11—Stockholder’s Equity,” for a more detailed discussion of the material 
terms of our ATM Facility.

As of September 30, 2024, our material cash requirements from known contractual obligations and commitments relate primarily to operating 
leases for our office, manufacturing, warehouse, and distribution facilities. See “Notes to Financial Statements—Note 7—Leases,” for a discussion of our 
lease obligations reflected on our balance sheet. 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, net cash flows used in operating activities, used in investing activities, and used in 
financing activities (in thousands):

 
    For the Nine Months Ended September 30,  
    2024     2023  

Net cash used in operating activities   $ (11,455 )   $ (15,922 )
Net cash used in investing activities     (25,861 )     (7,622 )
Net cash provided by financing activities     14,977       13,420  
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents   $ (22,339 )   $ (10,124 )

 
Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities consists primarily of net loss adjusted for certain non-cash items (including depreciation and amortization, 
bad debt expense, deferred taxes, loss on disposal of property, plant, and equipment, inventory reserve, amortization of debt issuance costs, and stock-based 
compensation expense), and the effect of changes in working capital and other activities.

Net cash used in operating activities was $11.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, which primarily consisted of net loss of 
$21.0 million plus net adjustments for non-cash charges of $12.4 million, offset by net changes in operating assets and liabilities of $2.9 million. The 
primary non-cash adjustments to net loss included $4.9 million of depreciation and amortization, a $4.2 million provision for inventory, $2.9 million of 
stock-based compensation, and $0.3 million of amortization of debt financing costs. The main drivers of the changes in operating assets and liabilities were 
a $0.9 million increase in prepaid and other current assets, a $0.7 million decrease in accrued liabilities, a $0.7 million increase in accounts receivable, a 
$0.4 million decrease in accounts payable, and a $0.3 million increase in inventories, partially offset by a $0.3 million decrease other non-current assets.
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Net cash used in operating activities was $15.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, which primarily consisted of net loss of 
$26.1 million plus net adjustments for non-cash charges of $10.8 million, offset by net changes in operating assets and liabilities of $0.6 million. The 
primary non-cash adjustments to net loss included $4.0 million of depreciation and amortization, $3.1 million of stock-based compensation, a $2.2 million 
impairment charge related to long-lived assets, $0.8 million loss on extinguishment of debt, and $0.4 million in amortization of debt financing costs. The 
main drivers of the changes in operating assets and liabilities were a $0.9 million decrease in accounts payable, a $0.7 million increase in accounts 
receivable, a $0.7 million increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets, partially offset by a $0.8 million increase in accrued liabilities, a $0.6 
million decrease in inventories, and a $0.3 million decrease other non-current assets.
 

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $25.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, which consisted of purchases of short-
term investments of $25.4 million and purchases of property, plant, and equipment of $0.6 million, partially offset by proceeds from the sale of certain 
long-lived assets of $0.1 million.

Net cash used in investing activities was $7.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, which consisted of purchases of property, 
plant, and equipment. 

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was $10.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, which was primarily attributable to net 
proceeds from the July 2024 Offering of $15.2 million, proceeds from financed insurance premiums of $0.4 million and proceeds of $0.1 million from the 
issuance of common stock under our employee stock purchase plan, partially offset by the repayment of financed insurance premiums of $0.6 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $13.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, which was primarily attributable to 
proceeds from the September 2023 Offerings of $22.9 million and proceeds from financed insurance premiums of $1.0 million, partially offset by 
repayment of long-term debt of $10.0 million, repayment of financed insurance premiums of $0.3 million and payment of offering costs of $0.4 million 
related to the ATM Facility. We also received proceeds of $0.1 million from the exercise of stock options and $0.1 million from issuance of common stock 
under our employee stock purchase plan. 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

For a discussion of our critical accounting estimates, refer to "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial 
Condition" in Part II, Item 7 and the notes to our financial statements in Part II, Item 8 of our 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K. See also Note 2, Basis of 
Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to our condensed financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-Q. There have been no material changes to our critical accounting estimates since our 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Emerging Growth Company and Smaller Reporting Company

We qualify as an “emerging growth company” as defined in the JOBS Act. As long as we qualify as an emerging growth company, we may take 
advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. These 
provisions include, but are not limited to:

• reduced obligations with respect to financial data, including presenting only two years of audited financial statements;

• an exemption from compliance with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act;

• reduced disclosure about our executive compensation arrangements in our periodic reports, proxy statements, and registration statements; 
and

• exemptions from the requirements of holding non-binding advisory votes on executive compensation or golden parachute arrangements.

In addition, under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies can delay adopting new or revised accounting standards until such time as those 
standards apply to private companies. We have elected to avail ourselves of this exemption from adopting new or revised accounting standards, and, 
therefore, we will not be subject to the same new or revised accounting standards as other public companies that are not emerging growth companies or that 
have opted out of using such extended transition period, which may make comparison of our financial statements with those of other public companies 
more difficult. We may take advantage of these reporting 
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exemptions until we no longer qualify as an emerging growth company, or, with respect to adoption of certain new or revised accounting standards, until we 
irrevocably elect to opt out of using the extended transition period.

Under the JOBS Act, we will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest to occur of:

• the last day of the fiscal year in which we have total annual gross revenues of $1.235 billion or more;

• the last day of our fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the date of the closing of our IPO;

• the date on which we have issued more than $1.0 billion in nonconvertible debt during the previous three years; and

• the date on which we are deemed to be a “large accelerated filer” under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange 
Act) (i.e., the first day of the fiscal year after we have (i) more than $700.0 million in outstanding common equity held by our non-
affiliates, measured each year on the last business day of our most recently completed second fiscal quarter, and (ii) been public for at 
least 12 months).

We are also a “smaller reporting company” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act. We may continue to be a smaller reporting 
company even after we are no longer an emerging growth company. We may take advantage of certain of the scaled disclosures available to smaller 
reporting companies until the fiscal year following the determination that (i) the market value of our voting and non-voting common stock held by non-
affiliates equals or exceeds $250.0 million measured on the last business day of our most recently completed second fiscal quarter, and our annual revenues 
are more than $100.0 million during the most recently completed fiscal year or (ii) the market value of our voting and non-voting common stock held by 
non-affiliates equals or exceeds $700.0 million measured on the last business day of our most recently completed second fiscal quarter.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

A description of recent accounting pronouncements that may potentially impact our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows is 
disclosed in Note 2, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to our condensed financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 
of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

 

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We are a smaller reporting company, as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act for this reporting period and are not required to provide 
the information required under this item.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act), as of the end of the period covered by this 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30, 2024, our Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended September 30, 2024, that have materially 
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures

In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, management recognizes that any 
controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. In 
addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting must reflect the fact that there are resource 
constraints, and that management is required to apply judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls and procedures relative to their costs.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

We are not a party to any material legal proceedings at this time. From time to time, we may become involved in various legal proceedings that 
arise in the ordinary course of business. For example, we may in the future become involved in legal proceedings relating to customers, employees, 
suppliers, competitors, government agencies, or others. We will evaluate any claims and lawsuits with respect to their potential merits, our potential 
defenses and counter claims, and the expected effect on us of defending the claims and a potential adverse result. However, the results of any litigation, 
investigation, or other legal proceedings are inherently unpredictable and potentially expensive. Any claims against us, whether meritorious or not, could be 
time consuming, result in costly litigation, damage our reputation, require significant amounts of management time, and divert significant resources. If any 
legal proceedings were to be determined adversely to us, or we were to enter into a settlement arrangement, we could be exposed to monetary damages or 
limits on our ability to operate our business, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results. Information 
pertaining to loss contingencies, including those arising out of potential legal liabilities and related matters, are described in Note 16, Contingencies, to our 
condensed financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. 
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

While we attempt to identify, manage, and mitigate risks and uncertainties associated with our business to the extent practical under the 
circumstances, some level of risk and uncertainty will always be present. Item 1A—“Risk Factors” in the 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K describes 
some of the risks and uncertainties associated with our business, which we strongly encourage you to review. These risks and uncertainties have the 
potential to materially affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, projected results, and future prospects. Except as set forth 
below, there have been no material changes in our risk factors from those disclosed in the 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We have incurred operating losses in the past and may incur losses in the future. 

We have incurred operating losses in the past, may incur operating losses in the future and may never achieve or maintain profitability. For the 
three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, we incurred net losses of $7.6 million and $21.0 million, respectively, and during the three and nine 
months ended September 30, 2023, we incurred net losses of $10.2 million and $26.1 million, respectively. We have incurred and will continue to incur 
costs in connection with legal, accounting, and other administrative expenses related to operating as a public company and we expect that our operating 
expenses will increase modestly with the growth of our business. Since our inception, we have financed our operations primarily through revenue from our 
products, the sale of our equity securities (including through our June 2021 IPO, September 2023 registered direct offering and private placements as well 
as our July 2024 private placements), and debt. While our revenue has generally grown over the last several years, it decreased in 2023 compared to 2022. 
If our revenue declines or fails to grow at a rate sufficient to offset our operating expenses, we will not be able to achieve and maintain profitability in 
future periods. We may never be able to generate sufficient revenue to achieve or maintain profitability, and our more recent growth and historical 
profitability should not be considered predictive of our future performance.

A significant portion of our total outstanding shares of common stock are available for immediate resale and may be sold into the market in 
the near future. This could cause the market price of our common stock to drop significantly, even if our business is doing well.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market could occur at any time. These sales, or the perception in the 
market that the holders of a large number of shares of common stock intend to sell shares, could reduce the market price of our common stock. All shares 
sold in our IPO were freely tradable upon such sale without restriction or further registration under the Securities Act, except for any shares held by our 
affiliates, as that term is defined under Rule 144 of the Securities Act (Rule 144), including our directors, executive officers, and other affiliates (including 
Telegraph Hill Partners), which may be sold only in compliance with certain limitations. The shares of our common stock issued in the course of our 
September 2023 registered direct offering and private placements and July 2024 private placements are now freely tradable, subject to the same limitations 
applicable to our directors, executive officers, and other affiliates (including Telegraph Hill Partners). 

As of September 30, 2024, we have 53,302,993 shares of common stock outstanding, substantially all of which are held by directors, executive 
officers, and other affiliates and are subject to volume, manner of sale, and other limitations under Rule 144.  

The market price of our stock could decline if the holders of currently restricted shares of common stock sell them or are perceived by the market 
as intending to sell them. These factors could also make it more difficult for us to raise additional funds through future offerings of our shares of common 
stock or other securities. In addition, shares of our common stock that are issued pursuant to our equity incentive plans and our Employee Stock Purchase 
Plan (ESPP) will become eligible for sale in the public market, subject to provisions relating to various vesting agreements, lock-up agreements, and Rule 
144, as applicable.

As of September 30, 2024, there were 312,174, 1,529,495 and 2,265,572 shares of common stock reserved for issuance pursuant to outstanding 
stock option awards under the 2016 Stock Plan, as amended (2016 Plan), the 2020 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended (2020 Plan) and the 2021 Equity 
Incentive Plan (2021 Plan), respectively. In addition, the 2021 Plan and the ESPP provide for annual automatic increases in the number of shares reserved 
thereunder. As of January 1, 2024, a total of 4,825,264 and 976,045 shares of common stock were available and have been reserved for future issuance 
under the 2021 Plan and our ESPP, respectively. In the future, we may also issue our securities in connection with investments or acquisitions. The amount 
of shares of our common stock issued in connection with an investment or acquisition could constitute a material portion of our then-outstanding shares of 
our common stock. Any issuance of additional securities in connection with investments or acquisitions may result in additional dilution to you. 
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We face risks arising from our recent and possible future workforce reductions, including adverse effects on employee morale, risks to our 
ability to meet customer demand with adequate turnaround times, and uncertainty around our ability to achieve anticipated cost savings from the 
workforce reductions.

During the roughly twelve-month period from February 2023 to January 2024, we undertook two strategic reductions in our workforce designed 
both to align the costs of our business with our near-term revenue expectations and to create operational and management-level efficiencies. These 
workforce reductions may result in unintended consequences, such as attrition beyond the intended number of employees, reduced morale among our 
remaining employees, and the loss of institutional knowledge and expertise. In addition, while we have eliminated positions, we might not successfully 
distribute the duties and obligations of our former employees among our remaining employees. The reductions in workforce could also make it difficult for 
us to pursue, or prevent us from pursuing, new opportunities and initiatives due to insufficient personnel, or require us to incur additional and unanticipated 
costs to hire new personnel to pursue such opportunities or initiatives. 

We cannot provide assurance that we will not undertake additional workforce reductions or that we will be able to realize the cost savings and 
other anticipated benefits from our previous or any future workforce reductions. In addition, our previous and any future workforce reductions may 
adversely affect our ability to respond rapidly to any new product, growth, or revenue opportunities, to meet customer demand with adequate turnaround 
times, and otherwise to execute on our business plans. Additionally, reductions in workforce may make it more difficult to recruit and retain new 
employees. If we need to increase the size of our workforce in the future, we may encounter a competitive hiring market due to labor shortages, increased 
employee turnover, changes in the availability of workers, and increased wage costs.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

(a) Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

There were no sales of equity securities sold during the period covered by this Quarterly Report that were not registered under the Securities Act 
and were not previously reported in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company. 

(b) Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering of Common Stock

Not applicable.

(c) Repurchases

None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None. 

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable. 

Item 5. Other Information.

None.
 

Item 6. Exhibits.
 

Exhibit
Number  Description

3.1   Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Alpha Teknova, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 29, 2021).

3.2   Amended and Restated Bylaws of Alpha Teknova, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 29, 2021).

4.1   Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (File No. 333-256795 filed with the SEC on June 21, 2021).

4.2   Investors’ Rights Agreement, dated as of January 14, 2019, by and among Alpha Teknova, Inc., and certain of its
stockholders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No.
333-256795) filed with the SEC on June 4, 2021).

4.3   Common Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of Alpha Teknova, Inc. issued to MidCap Funding XXVII on March 8, 2024 (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 11, 2024).

10.1 § Limited Waiver and Amendment No. 5 dated as of March 8, 2024, to the Amended and Restated Credit and Security Agreement (Term 
Loan), dated as of May 10, 2022, and as amended on November 8, 2022, March 28, 2023, July 13, 2023, and September 19, 2023, by and 
among Alpha Teknova, Inc. and MidCap Financial Trust, as agent and as a lender, and the additional lenders from time to time party thereto 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 11, 2024).

10.2 § Limited Waiver and Amendment No. 5 dated as of March 8, 2024, to the Amended and Restated Credit and Security Agreement 
(Revolving Loan), dated as of May 10, 2022, and as amended November 8, 2022, March 28, 2023, July 13, 2023, and September 19, 2023, 
by and among Alpha Teknova, Inc. and MidCap Financial Trust, as agent and as a lender, and the additional lenders from time to time party 
thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 11, 2024).

10.3 § Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated July 11, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report 
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 12, 2024).

10.4 § Form of Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 11, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report 
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 12, 2024).

31.1 * Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000119312521203268/d179312dex31.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000119312521203268/d179312dex32.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000119312521203268/d179312dex32.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000119312521194075/d83801dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000119312521194075/d83801dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000119312521182919/d83801dex42.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000119312521182919/d83801dex42.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000119312521182919/d83801dex42.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000095017024029226/tkno-ex4_1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000095017024029226/tkno-ex10_1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000095017024029226/tkno-ex10_2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000095017024083216/tkno-ex10_1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1850902/000095017024083216/tkno-ex10_2.htm
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31.2 * Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 * Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted Pursuant to 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS  Inline XBRL Instance Document – the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because XBRL tags are embedded 
within the Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH   Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL   Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF   Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB   Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE   Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
104   Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)
 

*	 Filed herewith.
§	 Non-material schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. The Registrant hereby undertakes to furnish 

supplemental copies of any of the omitted Schedules and exhibits upon request by the SEC.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 
  ALPHA TEKNOVA INC.
    
Date: November 8, 2024  By: /s/ STEPHEN GUNSTREAM
   Stephen Gunstream

   
President and Chief Executive Officer 

(Principal Executive Officer)
     
Date: November 8, 2024  By: /s/ MATTHEW LOWELL
   Matthew Lowell

   
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)
 



 

 

Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Stephen Gunstream, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Alpha Teknova, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this 
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to 
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those 
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent 
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to 
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal 
control over financial reporting.

 
Date: November 8, 2024  By: /s/ STEPHEN GUNSTREAM
   Stephen Gunstream

   
President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)
 



 

 

Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Matthew Lowell, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Alpha Teknova, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this 
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to 
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those 
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent 
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to 
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal 
control over financial reporting.

 
Date: November 8, 2024  By: /s/ MATTHEW LOWELL
   Matthew Lowell

   
Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)
 



 

 

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Alpha Teknova, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2024, as filed with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the 
Company.

 
Date: November 8, 2024  By: /s/ STEPHEN GUNSTREAM
   Stephen Gunstream

   

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

 
 
 
 

 
Date: November 8, 2024  By: /s/ MATTHEW LOWELL
   Matthew Lowell

   

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

 
 
 
 

 




